RFP-11-59
Independent verification and Validation Services

Question and Answer document

	
	QUESTION
	ANSWER

	1
	What methodology or compliance does the State currently use or would the vendors supply the IV&V methodology? (ISO, CMM, ITIL)
	The vendor would supply the IV&V methodology.

	2
	Clarification - Given that we do not know the size of the projects or the number of projects, how are we expected to come up with a pricing model?  How can we determine if we can lower the State’s cost without knowing the portfolio of projects?  Are you saying you want us to assume one $10m project, and base our pricing model from that assumption?
	Yes, assume one $10M IT development project using a standard SDLC and base your pricing model on that assumption within the $2 million dollar baseline established.

	3
	What is the anticipated volume of work anticipated to be awarded under this contract, in dollars or FTEs? 
	We anticipate there will be one to two IT development projects each year that would require an IV&V.  There may also be smaller projects that could require components of an IV&V (e.g., test validation, project status reporting).

	4
	Is it expected that the vendor would not only bring the process but also bring all of the necessary templates for the reporting or does the State already utilize these?
	The state does not have standard templates for IV&V.  The vendor can bring those to the engagement. 

	5
	What tools (i.e. MS Project) does the State use for tracking projects (schedule, budget, time entry etc)?
	MS Project is the standard for project plans.  

	6
	What are the definitions of Verify (review of objective evidence inspect and approve) and Validate (legally binding……?)  
	As we are using the terms in this RFP, validate is the process of examining a product to determine conformity with the users’ needs.  Verify is the process of examining a given activity to determine if it will consistently produce the required product.  

	7
	Are there metrics for IV&V performance (number of requirements covered in a test matrix, number of resulting defects based on requirements, missed requirements) etc.
	No, the state has no standard metrics for IV&V performance.

	8
	What types of recommendations would be expected to the project direction?  (Schedule, resources, budget, approach) i.e. project execution or are they related to purchase vs. build, available tools etc?
	The decisions of purchase vs. build, available tools, etc. would already be made before the IV&V begins.  Expected recommendations would be for the project direction, staffing levels, etc. 

	9
	Where is the ROI being tracked?
	There is no central tracking of ROI.

	10
	Where are the benefits being tracked?
	There is no central tracking of benefits.

	11
	Section 2.3.6 of RFP 11-59 does not match section 2.3.6 of the corresponding Business Proposal Template.  The former requires 1 reference, while the latter requires 3 references.  In addition, the Business Proposal Template asks for information related to hardware installations, along with the history of terminated contracts and pending litigation related to hardware installations.  Will the Business Proposal Template be changed to match the main RFP document?  
	No. Please use the information in the Business Proposal Template. We will need three references.

	12
	Section 2.3.10 of RFP 11-59 does not match section 2.3.10 of the corresponding Business Proposal Template. The latter inquires about a formal disaster recovery plan, while the former only requests general information including contact information. Will the Business Proposal Template be changed to match the main RFP document?
	The Business Proposal template has been changed and posted to the solicitation site.  Use the revised document to prepare your proposal.

	13
	Is there a minimum or maximum page count on any of the portions of the response to RFP 11-59?
	No, but the preference is to be as succinct as possible.

	14
	The RFP did not include information about the project for which IV&V services are sought.  Answers to the following questions will assist in better understanding of the level of effort.

a. What is the nature of the project, i.e., will it be custom development, a heavily modified COTS application, or a standard COTS application implementation?  

b. When within the four-year term of the contract is the actual go live anticipated to occur?

c. How many State jobs will be affected by the implementation?

d. Will organizational realignment occur as a result of the project?

e. How many different external stakeholder groups will be affected and what is the size of each group?

f. How large is the State project team that will be assigned full-time to the project?

g. How many oversight groups will be involved (Executive Committee, Steering Committee, Stakeholder Advisory Committees, Legislative Oversight, etc)?

h. What phase is the project in at the current time?

If the project ends before the four years, will the vendor be moved to another project or will the vendor’s contract also end?
	There is not a specific project for this RFP. We are looking for potential vendors for future Technology projects over $10 million or longer than 12 months.

	15
	Section 1.3 specifies that “It is the intent of the Indiana Office of Technology (IOT) to contract with one or more vendors that provides quality IV&V services for IOT and other state agencies and governmental bodies in Indiana.”  Will this procurement be restricted to only companies with past or current IV&V projects in the State of Indiana?
	No.  Any company with IV&V experience may be considered.  State of Indiana or other government experience with IV&V may carry more weight.

	16
	Section 2.3.7 states that “The IDOA Procurement Division maintains two databases of vendor information.”   It goes on to describe the Bidder registration database and how to sign up.  What is the second database?
	The second database is the Vendor Database.

	17
	Section 3.2.3 states that “Respondents who propose a decrease to the State’s current costs will receive positive points at the same rate as bid increasing cost.”  Is there already an incumbent IV&V vendor for this project or is this based on the average percentage of IV&V costs on other State projects or other assessment of current costs?
	 There is no incumbent IV&V vendor as this is a new initiative. The $2 million baseline in the cost proposal (section 2.5) of the RFP will be used to calculate the points, which represents the state’s best estimate (Section 3.2.3).

	18
	Paragraph 6: Audits of the Sample Contract states that if federal funds are used for the project, a financial and compliance audit is required.  Will there be Federal Funds passed through that will trigger the need for the financial and compliance audit?
	In some cases, federal funds could be used and require a financial and compliance audit.

	19
	Paragraph 12: Continuity of Services of the Sample Contract states that the vendor must provide 60 days of phase in and phase out services after the contract expires.  Should this service be priced into this proposal?
	No.

	20
	Please explain the intent of paragraph 27 of the Sample Contract regarding Material Referred to or Incorporated in this Contract?  Does it refer to deliverables that are part of the project or documents that are required to be submitted with the proposal?
	The intent of this section is to put borders around the contract and disallow documentation that is inconsistent with the contract.  

	21
	Will there be any travel associated with the project that needs to be specified according to Paragraph 44 of the Sample Contract?
	It is possible that some travel may be required for some projects.

	22
	Question 2.3.3 of the Business Proposal specifies audited financial statements.  Is it mandatory that the financial statements be audited?
	No, the language in Section 2.3.3 of the RFP prevails and the Business Proposal has been changed to reflect this.

	23
	Question 2.3.5 of the Business Proposal states that “Any or all portions of this RFP and any or all portions of the Respondents response may be incorporated as part of the final contract.”  What parts, if any, of the response will not become part of the contract?
	Those deemed confidential upon request of the respondent and consistent with statute (IC 5-14-3 et seq).

	24
	Question 2.3.6 of the Business Proposal states that phone interviews of the vendor’s references will be conducted and one of the questions to be asked is for the reference to “Evaluate the EPS installation and its integration with the permit management system.”  Is experience with EPS installations and integration with a permit management system required, desirable or optional experience?
	See addendum to the Business Proposal posted on the solicitation site that removes this requirement.

	25
	How many large projects are under the scope of this RFP?  
	Currently none.  

	26
	What are the technology foot-print of projects which require V&V?
	See the answer to question 14.

	27
	Does IOT have any preference to the onsite and offsite work location?  In case of onsite work, will IOT provide necessary facilities (work space, computers, telephone, etc.) for consultants to work?
	There will be times when the IV&V vendor will need to be onsite.  In those cases, the agency will provide the necessary facilities. 

	28
	The RFP document 168497574 expands on the type of verification and validation activities expected to be done (ref: page 3).  We are a CMMI and ISO compliant organization.  As such, we have a Software Quality Assurance (SQA) unit which undertakes such activities for our own projects, some of which are quite large sized and stretch to longer than 12 months. Such activities are commissioned by us, and not by our clients. Would it be sufficient to provide such references?
	We would prefer to see IV&V engagements outside the company.  However, inside engagements may be considered.

	29
	In Page 15 of the Document 168497574, there is a statement that 1 client reference should be provided.  Whereas in Page 3 of the Document 168497579 there is a statement that 3 client references should be provided.   Please clarify.
	No. Please use the information in the Business Proposal Template. Three references are required

	30
	In Page 3 of the Document 168497579 there is a reference to a product called EPS, which had not been mentioned earlier.  Please clarify the use of this product and expectation from the vendor with reference to this product
	See answer to question 24.

	31
	RFP Section 1.4 Summary of Scope of Work, pg 3, Can the State please clarify the intent of the requirement for projects to “…engage with IOT or a separate 3rd party vendor to employ metrics with weekly updates through project completion in order to provide visibility to all parties on project status and issues.”  Is it correct to assume that this 3rd party vendor may be the same as the IV&V vendor?
	Yes, the 3rd party vendor would be the same as the IV&V vendor.

	32
	RFP Section 1.21 Minority & Women’s Business Enterprises RFP Subcontractor Commitment, pg 9, The staff mix that will be deployed to provide the required IV&V services will obviously be tailored to fit the specific project being considered.  If the proposed subcontractors are not appropriate, would the State consider the use of an alternative subcontractor, with the same MBE or WBE certification?
	Yes, alternative subcontractors can be considered.  However, the respondent should provide a comprehensive list of subcontractors certified by the State of Indiana that could be engaged on projects that stem from this RFP.

	33
	RFP Section 2.3.6 References, pg 15, The requirement in this Section, to “… include a list of at least (1) one client…” is inconsistent with the requirement in Attachment E, to “…include a list of at least three (3) clients…”.  Which would the State prefer?
	See the answer to question 11.

	34
	RFP Section 2.3.13 Indiana Preferences, pg 17, Can the State please clarify the intent of the statement that “…Respondent may claim only one (1) preference.  For the purposes of this RFP, this limitation to claiming one (1) preference applies to Respondent’s ability to claim recycled content preference, Indiana Small Business preference, or to claim eligibility for Buy Indiana points.”  What is meant by “recycled content”?  How is the “recycled content” and “Indiana Small Business” preferences represented in Section 3.2 Evaluation Criteria, Summary of Evaluation Criteria points table?
	Points will not be awarded for recycled content. The information in this section and section 2.7 that is referenced explains the criteria to claim Buy Indiana and these points are awarded as stated in section 3.2 of the RFP.  See Summary of Evaluation Criteria. The Business Proposal template has been changed and posted to the solicitation site.  Use the revised document to prepare your proposal.

	35
	Attachment D – Cost Proposal Template, The cost proposal attachment seems to only ask for level, hours, and rate.  Would it be helpful if the bidder added a column (and total) for cost?
	No.  This will be computed from the information provided.

	36
	Attachment E – Business Proposal Template, Section 2.3.6, pg 3, Can the State please clarify “... the EPS installation and its integration with the permit management system…” with regard to the anticipated phone interviews?  Similarly, on the following page, “ The vendor shall disclose all sites where the proposed EPS was initially installed and subsequently discontinued from operation…”.
	See answer to question 24.

	37
	I’m unclear if this would be an ongoing, full time assessment service with the assessment team constantly engaged in various assessments…..or, would the assessment team only be active in certain limited intervals according to the project needs at a given time, and sitting on the bench in between assessments?  In other words, would our team be comprised of the same resources and maintain its same structure and be billable and engaged for the entire 4 years?
	This is not intended to be a full time service but rather a series of project-based engagements.

	38
	Section 1.4 SUMMARY SCOPE OF WORK:  This section states that “The IV&V may also include:” the list at the bottom of page 3.  Is this an absolute requirement to be included in the proposal (the word “may” is not concrete in the requirement)?
	A specific IV&V engagement may include the activities listed.  The state is interested in seeing the respondent’s approach to these activities.

	39
	Can you provide the number of assessments that will be performed and what stage of the project life cycles those assessed projects are typically in?
	The number of assessments is unknown at this time.  Some engagements will be from the beginning to the end of the project.  Others will be for only certain portions of the project.

	40
	Is it permissible for the same MBE/WBE firm to partner with multiple “prime” Respondents?   
	Yes.

	41
	How many years does the State’s baseline cost of $2 million for IV&V services represent? 
	One year.

	42
	Section 3.1, pg 21, 3.1.1 “Each proposal will be evaluated for adherence to requirements on a pass/fail basis.”  Please clarify.  What are the mandatory requirements?
	Mandatory requirements consist of the mandatory contract clauses in the sample contract, Business and Technical Proposals, and the Case Study attachment. 

	43
	Section 3.2, pg 22, Step 2  “This scoring will have a maximum possible score of 55 points with a potential of 5 bonus points if certain criteria are met.  All proposals will be ranked on the basis of their combined scores for Criteria 2 and 3 ONLY.  This ranking will be used to create a “short list”.  Any proposal not making the “short list” will not be considered for any further evaluation.” What is the criterion used to determine the “short list” (e.g., minimum number total points section 2+3; all bidders within a given score range, or top 2-3 bidders)?
	After initial evaluation of the business and technical proposals have been scored, the cost scores are added and then a short list, depending on a natural break in scores, will be used to determine the vendors taken to additional scoring for IEI, M/WBE, buy Indiana, etc.

	44
	Section 3.2, pg 23, 3.2.3 Bullet #5:  “If multiple Respondents decrease costs below 10% of the current baseline, an additional 5 points will be added to the Respondent proposing the lowest cost to the State.” Does there have to be multiple bidders bidding more than 10% below the baseline for the additional 5 points to be awarded?  Will a single bidder bidding more than 10% below the baseline receive the additional 5 points?
	1st portion answer is Yes.2nd portion answer is no, the bonus points are awarded for the lowest cost for the response with the best discount below 10%. There must be more that one response below 10% for the bonus to be awarded.

	45
	Section 2.5, pg 19, The price estimating parameters are a $10MM DDI effort and a state estimated IV&V of $2MM. Should we also assume that for pricing purposes the duration of the DDI/implementation effort is 12 months?  If it is not 12 months, how long should we assume it is?
	Yes, assume a 12 month project.

	46
	Section 1.21, pg 9-10, This section requires letters from each MBE or WBE we intend to use describing their SOW and their commitment to participate on their letterhead. If we have specific SOW to discuss with MBEs or WBEs, how would you suggest we describe a SOW to be used in their letters of commitment?
	See addendum 1 on the solicitation web site.

	47
	Section 3.2, pg 22, Summary of Evaluation Criteria: Step 1:  “In this step proposals will be evaluated only against Criteria 1 to ensure that they adhere to Mandatory Requirements.  Any proposals not meeting the Mandatory Requirements will be disqualified.”  Please list the mandatory requirements that a bidder’s proposal must satisfy under Step 1 before being evaluated under the next steps in the evaluation process.
	See answer to question 42.

	48
	Will all future IV&V procurements be limited to those vendors who are selected as a result of this RFP?  Will the IV&V procurements continue to be published on the IDOA web site?
	It is highly probable that the vendors selected through this RFP will perform the future IV&V engagements for the state.  The IV&V opportunities will be sent directly to the selected vendors and will not be listed on the IDOA web site.

	49
	Will there be a process to allow new vendors to apply for and be added to the short list?
	No.  New vendors can only be added through another RFP award.

	50
	Will other state agencies be limited to the IV&V vendors selected as a result of this procurement?
	See answer to question 48.

	
	
	

	51
	If a future IV&V procurement is published that does not cover the entire scope of IV&V work, and a bidder’s MBE or WBE partner(s) do not have skills applicable to the scope of work requested, will the bidder be permitted to identify alternate MBE/WBE partners?
	See answer to question 32.

	52
	If an IV&V procurement is published that requires specialty technical or subject matter skills that were not listed in the vendors response to RFP-11-59, will the vendor be permitted to add additional roles to the bid and if so will there be any restrictions on the rates allowed?
	Since the job descriptions and maximum rates will be included in the contract, additional roles and rates may only be added by an amendment to the contract.

	53
	If the MBE/WBE partner is unable to provide staff to fulfill their obligation, for example the company goes out of business; will the vendor be permitted to substitute another MBE/WBE?
	Yes, as long as the commitment % is the same.

	54
	Attachment C – Indiana Economic Impact Form

Please clarify the definition of an FTE in terms of the number of hours per FTE.  Also clarify that the FTE’s included on the FTE Details page of the Indiana Economic Impact Form should be traceable to the number of hours included on the Cost Proposal (Attachment D).
	The state defines FTE (Full-Time Equivalent) as a measurement of an employee's productivity on a specific project or contract.  An FTE of 1 would mean that there is one worker fully engaged on a project.  If there are two employees each spending 1/2 of their working time on a project that would also equal 1 FTE.

	55
	1.20 & 1.21Attachment A, pg 9, The RFP requires the MBE/WBE forms to be complete in their entirety for the submission of this RFP. However, since this RFP is not for a specific project, but rather more of a Master Service Agreement to cover services for any project that meets the criteria for IV&V services, it is difficult to gage items such as: 

· Total Bid Amount

· Sub-Contract Amount

· Sub-Contract Percentage of Total Bid

· Provide approximate dates when Sub-Contractor will perform on this project
Will the State allow us to respond by committing to a percentage of services dedicated to MBE/WBE services until the project(s) scope and relevant project value are assigned? 

If not, how do they propose these forms are completed?
	Please see Addendum 1 and Revised Attachment A for updated information.

	56
	2.3.3 Company Financial Information, pg 13, Are electronic copies of the preceding two years audited financial statements allowed for submission? Our concern is that our financial statements are over 250 pages long and we do not want to inconvenience the State with a massive proposal.
	Yes electronic copies are permitted.

	57
	Does the state prefer to have IV&V staff onsite full time, or to perform periodic reviews and assessments?
	See the answer to question 27.

	58
	What is the term of the contract?
	Four years with no renewal. 

	59
	Would the State prefer the Cost Proposal to be in a separate sealed envelope from the Technical and Business Proposals?
	No, it can be sent along with the rest of your proposal.

	60
	2.3.13 Indiana Preferences, pg 17, In this section the RFP lists 3 possible Indiana preferences, “ability to claim recycled content preference, Indiana Small Business preferences, or to claim eligibility for Buy Indiana points.” 

In the bullets listed below the paragraph only the preferences for Indiana Small Business and Buy Indiana are listed. Could the State please confirm which preferences are applicable to this RFP?

Also, the Business Proposal Template only lists Buy Indiana as a preference that can earn points in evaluation. Could the State please clarify whether points will be given for the Recycled Content and Indiana Small Business preferences?
	Points will not be awarded for recycled content. The information in this section and section 2.7 that is referenced explains the criteria to claim Buy Indiana and these points are awarded as stated in section 3.2 of the RFP.  See Summary of Evaluation Criteria. The Business Proposal template has been changed and posted to the solicitation site.  Use the revised document to prepare your proposal.

	61
	RFP Section 1.7, pg 6, No more than one proposal per Respondent may be submitted. May a bidder submit a proposal and also be a subcontractor in another bidder's proposal?
	Yes.


	62
	RFP Section 1.23, pg 11, Proposal Evaluation (Date) – TBD. For planning purposes, can vendors expect a publication of an anticipated schedule later in the procurement?
	No. We cannot predict what may or may not happen during the evaluation phase. It will begin soon after the proposals are received.

	63
	Technical Proposal Template (Attachment F). (For Example) 2.4.1, Describe your methodology for verifying the process of reporting project status. Does the vendor's entire response to a single question have to fit into the single cell/table provided?
	No.  If the vendor’s response will not fit into a single cell, the vendor can attach a document with their response AS LONG AS the document addresses only that question AND it is clearly identified.

	64
	2.3.9 – Subcontractors, The Respondent is responsible for the performance of any obligations that may result from this RFP, and shall not be relieved by the non-performance of any subcontractor. Any Respondent’s proposal must identify all subcontractors and describe the contractual relationship between the Respondent and each subcontractor. Either a copy of the executed subcontract or a letter of agreement over the official signature of the firms involved must accompany each proposal.
Any subcontracts entered into by the Respondent must be in compliance with all State statutes, and will be subject to the provisions thereof. For each portion of the proposed products or services to be provided by a subcontractor, the technical proposal must include the identification of the functions to be provided by the subcontractor and the subcontractor’s related qualifications and experience.
The combined qualifications and experience of the Respondent and any or all subcontractors will be considered in the State’s evaluation. The Respondent must furnish information to the State as to the amount of the subcontract, the qualifications of the subcontractor for guaranteeing performance, and any other data that may be required by the State. All subcontracts held by the Respondent must be made available upon request for inspection and examination by appropriate State officials, and such relationships must meet with the approval of the State. As it appears this RFS is to become "qualified" to provide IVV services for IOT and other State Agencies, there is no contract award amount associated with this procurement.  Our understanding is that vendors selected through this procurement will be given "task orders" or other procurement vehicles which only the vendors selected from this procurement can bid on.  If this understanding is correct, please explain what is to be included in the Level of Committment levels from each MBE and WBE?  We wont know any $ amounts until we bid on a task order from IOT, so should this section be amended to just ask for a Letter of committment documenting the % of any future task order that would be assigned to each MBE or WBE?  Please clarify.
	Please see Addendum 1 and Revised Attachment A for updated information. 
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